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April 17,2018
Dear Fellow Shareholder:
You are cordially invited to attend our Annual Meeting of Shareholders (including any adjournments or
postponements thereof, the _Annual Meeting ) on May 24, 2018. We will hold the meeting at 8:00 a.m., local time, at
the Westin O Hare Hotel, 6100 N. River Road, Rosemont, Illinois 60018. Included with this letter are the notice of
annual meeting of shareholders, a proxy statement detailing the business to be conducted at the Annual Meeting, and a
proxy card. You may also find electronic copies of these documents online at www.stockholderdocs.com/PBPB.
Regardless of whether you plan to be with us at the Annual Meeting, it is important that your voice be heard.
Accordingly, we request that you vote by telephone, by Internet or by signing, dating and returning the proxy card in

the postage pre-paid envelope provided.

If you have any questions or require any assistance with voting your proxy card, please contact our proxy solicitation
firm, Mackenzie Partners, Inc. at:

MacKenzie Partners, Inc.

1704 Broadway, 27th Floor
New York, New York 10018

proxy @mackenziepartners.com
Call Collect: (212) 929-5500
or
Toll-Free: (800) 322-2885
Email: proxy @mackenziepartners.com

Sincerely,

Pete Bassi Alan Johnson

Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive Officer
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111 North Canal Street, Suite 850
Chicago, Illinois 60606
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON MAY 24, 2018
To our Shareholders:
The 2018 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (including any adjournments or postponements thereof, the _Annual

Meeting ) of Potbelly Corporation (the _Company ) will be held on May 24, 2018, at 8:00 a.m. local time, at the Westin
O Hare Hotel, 6100 N. River Road, Rosemont, Illinois 60018 for the following purposes:

1. to elect ten directors to serve for a term of one year or until their successors are duly elected or appointed and
qualified;

2. to ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP to serve as our independent registered public accounting firm
for the fiscal year ending December 30, 2018;

3. to approve the Amended and Restated Potbelly Corporation 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plan; and

4. to transact any other business properly brought before the Annual Meeting.
These items of business are more fully described in the Proxy Statement accompanying this Notice.

The Board of Directors (the _Board ) has set the close of business on April 12, 2018 as the record date for determining
shareholders of the Company entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. A list of the shareholders as of
the record date will be available for inspection by shareholders, for any purpose germane to the Annual Meeting, at

the Company s offices and at the offices of American Stock Transfer & Trust Company LLC, the Company s
independent share transfer agent, during normal business hours for a period of 10 days prior to the Annual Meeting.
The list will also be available for inspection by shareholders at the Annual Meeting.

All shareholders are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person. EVEN IF YOU CANNOT ATTEND
THE ANNUAL MEETING, PLEASE TAKE THE TIME TO PROMPTLY VOTE YOUR PROXY BY
CAREFULLY FOLLOWING THE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE NOTICE REGARDING AVAILABILITY OF
PROXY MATERIALS. ALTERNATIVELY, IF YOU HAVE REQUESTED WRITTEN PROXY
MATERIALS, PLEASE SIGN, DATE AND RETURN THE PROXY CARD IN THE RETURN ENVELOPE
PROVIDED AS PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE.
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Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting to be Held on May 24,
2018: The Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting and the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2017 are available at www.stockholderdocs.com/PBPB.
By order of the Board of Directors,
Matthew Revord
Senior Vice President, Chief Legal Officer, General Counsel and Secretary

April 17,2018
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IMPORTANT
TO ASSURE THAT YOUR SHARES ARE REPRESENTED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING, WE URGE YOU TO
COMPLETE, DATE AND SIGN THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AND MAIL IT PROMPTLY IN THE
POSTAGE PRE-PAID ENVELOPE PROVIDED, OR VOTE BY TELEPHONE OR THE INTERNET AS
INSTRUCTED ON THE PROXY CARD, WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL
MEETING. YOU CAN REVOKE YOUR PROXY AT ANY TIME BEFORE THE PROXIES YOU APPOINTED
CAST YOUR VOTES.

If you have any questions or need any assistance in voting your shares, please contact our proxy solicitor:

MacKenzie Partners, Inc.
1704 Broadway, 27th Floor
New York, New York 10018
proxy @mackenziepartners.com
Call Collect: (212) 929-5500
or
Toll-Free: (800) 322-2885

Email: proxy @mackenziepartners.com
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING

PROXY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors (the _Board of Directors or Board ) of Potbelly Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the
Company ), is using this Proxy Statement to solicit your proxy for use at our 2018 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
(including any postponements or adjournments thereof, the _Annual Meeting ). We are sending this Proxy Statement,

the enclosed proxy card and the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 on or
about April 17, 2018, to our shareholders of record as of the close of business on April 12, 2018. References in this
Proxy Statement to Potbelly, the Company, we, wus, our and similar terms refer to Potbelly Corporation.

Holders of our common stock at the close of business on April 12, 2018 will be entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.
As of April 12, 2018, 25,389,675 shares of our common stock, $0.01 par value per share, were outstanding and each
was entitled to one vote. Shareholders are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held. A majority of
these shares present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting will constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business.

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING

Important notice regarding the availability of proxy materials for the Annual Meeting

The Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders, this Proxy Statement, the enclosed proxy card and our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 are available online at www.stockholderdocs.com/PBPB.

Why am I receiving these materials?

Our Board of Directors is soliciting proxies in connection with the Annual Meeting. On or about April 17, 2018, we
expect to begin mailing these proxy materials to shareholders of record as of the close of business on April 12, 2018,
the record date. On the record date, there were 25,389,675 shares of our common stock outstanding.

You are receiving this Proxy Statement as a shareholder of the Company. We request that you promptly use the
enclosed proxy card to vote, by telephone, Internet, or mail, in the event you desire to express your support of or

opposition to the proposals.

THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS VOTING FOR THE ELECTION OF EACH OF THE BOARD S
NOMINEES UNDER PROPOSAL 1 AND FOR PROPOSALS 2 AND 3 USING THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD.
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Where and when is the Annual Meeting?

We will hold the Annual Meeting on May 24, 2018, at 8:00 am, Central Time, at the Westin O Hare Hotel, 6100 N.
River Road, Rosemont, Illinois 60018.
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING

What am I being asked to vote on at the Annual Meeting?

We are asking our shareholders to consider the following proposals at the Annual Meeting:

Proposal 1: the election of ten directors to serve for a term of one year or until their successors are duly elected or
appointed and qualified.

Proposal 2: the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public
accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 30, 2018.

Proposal 3: the approval of the Amended and Restated Potbelly Corporation 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Proposal 4: any other business properly introduced at the Annual Meeting.
Who is soliciting my vote?

In this Proxy Statement, the Board is soliciting your vote at the Annual Meeting.

How does the Board recommend that I vote?

The Board unanimously recommends that you vote by proxy using the proxy card as follows:

FOR the election of all ten director nominees set forth on the proxy card;

FOR the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting

firm for the fiscal year ending December 30, 2018; and
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FOR the approval of the Amended and Restated Potbelly Corporation 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plan.
Why is the Board recommending a FOR vote for Proposals 1, 2 and 3?

We describe all proposals and the Board s reasons for supporting each of them in detail beginning on page 18 of this
Proxy Statement.

Who can vote?

Holders of our common stock at the close of business on April 12, 2018, the record date, may vote at the Annual
Meeting.

As of April 12, 2018, there were 25,389,675 shares of our common stock outstanding. Each share is entitled to one
vote.

How many votes do I have?

You have one vote for each share of our common stock that you owned at the close of business on the record date.
These shares include share held by you as a shareholder of record and as a beneficial owner.

What is the difference between holding shares as a shareholder of record and as a beneficial owner ?

If your shares are registered directly in your name with our transfer agent, you are considered the shareholder of
record with respect to those shares. We have sent these proxy materials directly to you.

If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee, you are considered the beneficial
owner of the shares held in street name. Your broker, bank or other nominee who is considered the shareholder of
record with respect to those shares has forwarded these proxy materials to you. As the beneficial owner, you have the
right to direct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares by using the voting instruction card
included in the mailing or by following their instructions for voting by telephone or the Internet.

Table of Contents 16
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING

How can I vote my shares?

You can vote by proxy or in person at the Annual Meeting.

What is a proxy?

It is your legal designation of another person to vote the shares you own. That other person is called a proxy. If you
designate someone as your proxy in a written document, that document is also called a proxy or a proxy card. We
have designated two of our officers as proxies for the Annual Meeting. These officers are Alan Johnson and Matthew
Revord.

How you can vote

Shareholders of Record. Shareholders of record may vote their shares or submit a proxy to have their shares voted by
one of the following methods:

By Internet - You may submit your proxy online via the Internet by following the instructions provided on the
enclosed proxy card. Internet voting facilities will be available 24 hours a day and will close at 11:59 p.m., Eastern
Time, on May 23, 2018.

By Telephone - You may submit your proxy by touch-tone telephone by calling the toll-free number on the
enclosed proxy card. Telephone voting facilities will be available 24 hours a day and will close at 11:59 p.m.,
Eastern Time, on May 23, 2018.

By Mail - You may submit your proxy by completing, signing and dating your proxy card and returning it in the
reply envelope included with these proxy materials.

In Person - You may attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person by completing a ballot. Attending the Annual
Meeting without completing a ballot will not count as a vote. If you choose to vote in person, you must bring proof
of identification and your notice or proxy card showing your control number to the Annual Meeting. You are

Table of Contents 17



Edgar Filing: POTBELLY CORP - Form DEF 14A

encouraged to complete, sign and date the proxy card and mail it in the enclosed postage pre-paid envelope

regardless of whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting.
Beneficial Owners. If you are the beneficial owner of your shares (that is, you hold your shares in street name through
an intermediary such as a broker, bank or other nominee), you will receive instructions from your bank, broker or
other nominee.

Your bank, broker or other nominee will not vote your shares on any matters unless you provide them instructions on
how to vote your shares. You should instruct your bank, broker or other nominee how to vote your shares by

following the directions provided by your bank, broker or other nominee. Alternatively, you may obtain a legal proxy
from your bank, broker or other nominee and bring it with you to hand in with a ballot in order to be able to vote your
shares at the Annual Meeting. If you choose to vote at the meeting, you must bring the following: (i) proof of
identification, (ii) an account statement or letter from the bank, broker or other nominee indicating that you are the
beneficial owner of the shares and (iii) a signed proxy from the shareholder of record giving you the right to vote the
stock. The account statement or letter must show that you were the beneficial owner of the shares on April 12, 2018,
the record date for the Annual Meeting.

General. If you submit your proxy using any of the methods above, Alan Johnson or Matthew Revord will vote your
shares in the manner you indicate. You may specify whether your shares should be voted for all, some, or none of the
nominees for director and for or against any other proposals properly introduced at the Annual Meeting. If you vote by
telephone or Internet and choose to vote with the recommendation of our Board of Directors, or if you vote by mail,
sign your proxy card, and do not indicate specific choices, your shares will be voted FOR the election of each of the
ten director nominees (Proposal 1), FOR ratification of the appointment of our independent public accounting firm
(Proposal 2) and FOR approval of the Amended and Restated Potbelly Corporation 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(Proposal 3).

If a matter is not timely submitted pursuant to Rule 14a-4(c)(1), your proxy will authorize Alan Johnson or Matthew
Revord to vote your shares in their discretion with respect to any such matter subsequently raised at the Annual
Meeting. At the time this Proxy Statement was filed, we knew of no matters to be considered at the Annual Meeting

other than those referenced in this Proxy Statement.

How can I revoke my proxy?

You may revoke a proxy in any one of the following three ways:

submit a valid, later-dated proxy, or vote again by Internet or by phone after your original vote;
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING

notify our corporate secretary in writing before the Annual Meeting that you have revoked your proxy; or

vote in person at the Annual Meeting.
What quorum is required for the Annual Meeting?

In order to have a valid shareholder vote, a quorum must exist at the Annual Meeting. At the Annual Meeting a
quorum exists when shareholders holding a majority of the issued and outstanding shares entitled to vote are present
or represented by proxy at the meeting.

Votes withheld, abstentions and broker-non votes will be counted as present or represented for purposes of
determining whether a quorum exists. In the absence of a quorum, the Annual Meeting may be adjourned by a
majority of the votes entitled to be cast either present in person or represented by proxy or by any officer entitled to

preside at the Annual Meeting.

What vote is required to approve each proposal?

Broker Discretionary

Proposal 1 Vote Required Voting Allowed
Election of Directors Plurality of votes cast No
Proposal 2
Yes
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Ratification of the appointment of Majority of shares present in person
Deloitte & Touche LLP as our or represented by proxy and entitled
independent registered public to vote

accounting firm for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2017

Proposal 3
Approval of the Amended and Majority of shares present in person ~ No
Restated Potbelly Corporation 2013 or represented by proxy and entitled
Long-Term Incentive Plan to vote

How are the voting results determined?

For the election of directors, your vote may be cast for each of the nominees or your vote may be withheld with
respect to one or more of the nominees. The nominees receiving the largest number of for votes will be elected as
directors, up to the maximum number of directors to be chosen for election. For the ratification of the appointment of
Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm, your vote may be cast for, against or

abstain with respect to that proposal. For the approval of the Amended and Restated Potbelly Corporation 2013
Long-Term Incentive Plan, your vote may be cast for, against or abstain with respect to that proposal. Each of
Proposals 2 and 3 will pass if the total votes cast for such proposal exceed the total number of votes cast against such
proposal.

If you are a shareholder of record and you submit (including telephone or Internet) your proxy card with no
instructions on how to vote, your shares will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of the Board. If you
are a beneficial owner and you submit (including electronic confirmation in the case of telephone or Internet voting)
your voting instruction form with no instructions on how to vote, then, because all of the proposals for the Annual
Meeting are considered non-routine matters, your bank, broker or other nominee would not have discretionary
authority to vote your shares on any of the proposals.

What is the effect of abstentions and broker non-votes?

Abstentions and broker non-votes are included for the purpose of determining whether the number of shares present at
the Annual Meeting constitutes a quorum.

Abstentions will count as a vote against the proposals, other than for the election of directors. Abstentions will not
have an effect on the election of directors because directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast. Because the
approval of a majority of shares present and entitled to vote is required to ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche
LLP as our independent public accountants and to approve the Amended and Restated Potbelly Corporation 2013
Long-Term Incentive Plan, abstentions have the effect of a vote against those proposals.
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING

Broker non-votes occur when brokers do not have discretionary voting authority to vote certain shares held in street

name on particular non-routine proposals and the beneficial owner of those shares has not instructed the broker to vote
on those proposals. Broker non-votes are not counted in the tabulations of the votes cast or present at the Annual

Meeting and entitled to vote on any of the proposals, and therefore will have no effect on the outcome of the

proposals.

If I have already voted by proxy on one or more proposals, can I change my vote?

Yes. To change your vote by proxy, simply sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card or voting instruction form in
the accompanying postage pre-paid envelope, or vote by proxy via telephone or the Internet in accordance with the
instructions on the proxy card or voting instruction form. We strongly urge you to vote by proxy FOR Proposals 1, 2
and 3. Only your latest dated proxy will count at the Annual Meeting.

Will my shares be voted if I do nothing?

If your shares are registered in your name, you must sign and return a proxy card in order for your shares to be voted,
unless you vote via telephone or the Internet or vote in person at the Annual Meeting.

If your shares are held in street name (that is, held for your account by a broker, bank or nominee) and you do not
instruct your bank, broker or other nominee how to vote your shares, then, because all of the proposals for the Annual
Meeting are considered non-routine matters, your bank, broker or other nominee would not have discretionary
authority to vote your shares on those proposals. If your shares of our common stock are held in street name, your
bank, broker or other nominee has enclosed a proxy card or voting instruction form with this Proxy Statement. We
strongly encourage you to authorize your bank, broker or other nominee to vote your shares by following the
instructions provided on the proxy card or voting instruction form.

Please return your proxy card or voting instruction form to your bank, broker or other nominee by proxy by signing,
dating and returning the enclosed proxy card or voting instruction form in the accompanying postage pre-paid
envelope or vote by proxy via telephone or the Internet in accordance with the instructions in the proxy card or voting
instruction form. Please contact the person responsible for your account to ensure that a proxy card or voting
instruction form is voted on your behalf.

We strongly urge you to vote by proxy FOR Proposals 1, 2 and 3 by signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy
card today in the envelope provided. You may also vote by proxy by telephone using the toll-free number on the

proxy card or by Internet using the website address on the proxy card. If your shares are held in street name, you
should follow the instruction on your proxy card or voting instruction form provided by your bank, broker or other
nominee, and provide specific instructions to your bank, broker or other nominee to vote as described above.
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Has the Company received notice from one or more shareholders that they are intending to nominate director
candidates at the Annual Meeting?

Privet Fund LP had notified the Company of its intention to nominate a slate of nominees for election as directors at
the Annual Meeting. However, Privet Fund LP withdrew its nomination notice as part of a settlement with the
Company. Please see Corporate Governance Resolution of Shareholders Nominations on page 11 for further details.

What are the fiscal year end dates?

This Proxy Statement provides information about the matters to be voted on at the Annual Meeting and additional
information about Potbelly and its executive officers and directors. Some of the information is provided as of the end
of our 2016 or 2017 fiscal years as well as some information being provided as of a more current date. Our fiscal year
2016 ended on December 25, 2016 and our fiscal year 2017 ended on December 31, 2017.
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING

Whom should I call if I have questions about the Annual Meeting?

If you have any questions or require any assistance with voting your shares, or if you need additional copies of the
proxy materials, please contact:

MacKenzie Partners, Inc.
1704 Broadway, 27th Floor
New York, New York 10018
proxy @mackenziepartners.com
Call Collect: (212) 929-5500
or
Toll-Free: (800) 322-2885
Email: proxy @mackenziepartners.com
IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL
MEETING TO BE HELD ON MAY 24, 2018: THE PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING AND
THE ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 ARE

AVAILABLE FREE OF CHARGE ON THE WEBSITE WWW.STOCKHOLDERDOCS.COM/PBPB.

Where can I find the voting results?

We intend to announce preliminary voting results at the Annual Meeting. We will disclose the preliminary results in a
Current Report on Form 8-K, which we expect to file on or before May 31, 2018. You can obtain a copy of the Form

8-K by logging on to our website at http://investors.potbelly.com/financial-information/sec-filings, or by visiting the
SEC s public reference room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549, or through the EDGAR system at

www.sec.gov. Information on our website does not constitute part of this Proxy Statement.
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ANNUAL MEETING PROCEDURES

ANNUAL MEETING PROCEDURES

Admission to the Annual Meeting

Only shareholders of the Company or their duly authorized proxies may attend the Annual Meeting. Proof of
ownership of our shares must be presented in order to be admitted to the Annual Meeting. If your shares are held in
the name of a bank, broker or other nominee and you plan to attend the Annual Meeting in person, you must bring a
brokerage statement, the proxy card mailed to you by your bank or other nominee or other proof of ownership as of
the record date, April 12, 2018, to be admitted to the Annual Meeting. Otherwise, proper documentation of a duly
authorized proxy must be presented. This proof can be a brokerage statement or letter from a bank, broker or other
nominee indicating ownership on the record date, a proxy card, or a valid, legal proxy provided by your bank, broker
or other nominee.

After the chairman of the meeting opens the Annual Meeting, further entry will be prohibited. No cameras, recording
equipment, electronic devices, large bags, briefcases or packages will be permitted in the Annual Meeting. The use of
mobile phones during the Annual Meeting is also prohibited. All persons attending the Annual Meeting will be
required to present a valid government-issued picture identification, such as a driver s license or passport, to gain
admittance to the Annual Meeting.

Who Can Vote; Outstanding Shares

Holders of record of our shares at the close of business on April 12, 2018 may vote at the Annual Meeting. As of
April 12, 2018, we had 25,389,675 shares of our common stock outstanding, and each share is entitled to one vote. A
majority of these shares, present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting, will constitute a quorum for
the transaction of business.

Voting Procedures

You can vote by attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person, or you can vote by proxy. If you are the record
holder of your shares, you can vote in the following four ways:

By Internet: You may vote by submitting a proxy over the In